

TRAN HOANG TU LINH

Ho Chi Minh City University of Law Room A.301, 2-4 Nguyen Tat Thanh Street Ward 12, District 4, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam thtlinh@hcmulaw.edu.vn; tran.ht.linh@gmail.com

CAPSULE BIOGRAPHY

TRAN Hoang Tu Linh is a lecturer at the Faculty of Commercial Law, Ho Chi Minh City University of Law—one of two leading law schools in Vietnam. She is listed as a commercial arbitrator with the Southern Trade Arbitration Centre (STAC). Linh completed her Master of Laws, Bachelor of Laws, and Bachelor of Arts (Political Science) at the University of Melbourne, Ho Chi Minh City University of Law, and the City University of New York, respectively. Linh has actively been working with international scholars in leading universities—such as Monash University and the University of Melbourne in Australia—in different projects related to international law, global governance, and dispute resolution. She is currently taking part in (1) a national level research project funded by the Vietnam's National Foundation for Science and Technology Department, examining lessons from international experience in promoting Vietnam's arbitration in the context of global economic integration; and (2) a university-level research project funded by Ho Chi Minh City University of Law focusing on third parties in commercial arbitration law. Her research interests include international commercial dispute resolution and contract law.

EDUCATION

Pedagogical Professional Training Certificate	2020
University of Melbourne, Melbourne, Australia Master of Laws	December 2019
Ho Chi Minh City University of Law, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam Bachelor of Laws, top 6% of graduating class	December 2017
Teachers of English to Speakers of Other Languages (TESOL) Certificate	2014
Brooklyn College – City University of New York, Brooklyn, NY	February 2014

Bachelor of Arts, *cum laude*, Political Science (Minor: Business Law) Overall GPA: 3.70/4.00; Major GPA: 3.75/4.00 Honors: Departmental Honors – Political Science, Samuel Dawson Memorial Scholarship, Phi Sigma Tau

<u>SKILLS</u>

Fluent in English, native Vietnamese speaker Microsoft Office, Microsoft Publisher, Adobe Photoshop, and basic SPSS

RELEVANT EXPERIENCE

Monash University, Melbourne, Australia, Jul. 2019-present

Research Officer

- Conducting legal research under the direction of supervisor(s)
- Reviewing, editing, and proofreading academic papers on legal-related topics such as self-driving systems and international trade laws, legal implication of application of artificial intelligence
- Translating law-related documents

Ho Chi Minh City University of Law, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam, May 2017-present

Lecturer

- Preparing and delivering regular bilingual lectures
- Conducting legal research and writing academic papers on commercial-related issues
- In-charge courses (taught in English) Law of Contract and Alternative Dispute Resolution
- Participating in curriculum revision; planning and executing academic projects

Freelance Interpreter, 05/2015–present

• Providing interpreting services to a group of 40 - 60 people at conferences or training with law-related topics, such as taxation, identity theft, contracts, and international trade.

Vietnam's Ministry of Trade and Industry (MoIT), Hanoi, Vietnam, Apr. 2021–Dec. 2021 External Expert

• Conducted researches for MoIT (Multilateral Trade Policy Department) on preliminary establishment of the FTA index to improce implementation of FTAs that Viet Nam is party to (including EU-Vietnam FTA)

Technical Assistance for the ARISE+ Programme in Vietnam, Jun. 2020–Jan. 2021 (EuropeAid/139560/DH/SER/VN)

Non Key Expert: EVFTA-Related Data/Materials for Viet Nam's FTA Portal

- Translated EVFTA-related data/materials
- Assisted Ministry of Industry and Trade in processing and uploading data for the FTA Portal
- Prepared and submitted reports

RMIT Vietnam, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam, May 2016–Apr. 2017 Learning and Teaching, Office of Vice President (Academic)

Project Officer

- Conducted literature research (in English and Vietnamese)
- Provided training to teachers of Ho Chi Minh City Department of Education and Training and RMIT student employees
- Liaised with project team members to identify gaps and review materials at a regular interval; communicated with project leader to ensure guidelines met
- Observed project timeline and assisted in formulating reports

University of Social Sciences and Humanities, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam, Sep. 2014-

Jun.2015

Faculty of International Relations

Lecturer

- Delivered lectures to groups of 20 to 70 students using advanced teaching techniques
- Prepared lesson plans and learning materials; involved in setting up and grading exams
- Translated course curriculum and related documents to support the Faculty's ASEAN University Network Quality Assessment application
- Mentored, provided advice and support to students on a personal level

Brooklyn College, Brooklyn, NY, USA, Feb. 2014–Jun. 2014 Office of International Education and Global Engagement

Assistant to Senior Director

- Assisted Senior Director in special projects
- Member of study/research abroad scholarship committees
- Monitored study abroad applications

Canadian Bar Association, Ha Noi, Vietnam, Oct. 2012–Dec. 2012

Justice Partnership Programme

Personal Assistant/ Interpreter

- Prepared and participated in Strategic Plan Steering Committee meeting, field visits, and social events
- Provided consecutive and whispering interpreting service; assisted with translations; compiled summaries of legal training evaluations

RESEARCH PROJECTS

- Ho Chi Minh City University of Law, Vietnam (Third parties in commercial arbitratrion law), Nov. 2021–present
- National Foundation for Science and Technology Development (NAFOSTED), Vietnam (Lessons from international experience in promoting Vietnam's arbitration in the context of global economic integration), Jun. 2020–present

RECENT PUBLICATIONS

Working Papers

- "Third-Party Funding in Commercial Arbitration: Experiences from Hong Kong and Singapore and Lessons for Vietnam", *Conference on Third Parties in Arbitration: Foreign Practice and Experiences for Vietnam*, (Vietnam, Apr. 2022)
- "Analysis of the Scope of Application of Singapore Convention on Mediation and Proposed Amendments to Vietnamese Law", *Vietnamese Journal of Legal Sciences* (acceptance with minor revision) (with Le Minh Nhut)
- "Independence and impartiality of international adjudicators: The Vietnamese Perspective", *General Congress inn Ausnción in 2022* (under review)
- "Alternative Dispute Resolution in the International Construction Sector and Their Specificities in Viet Nam", *International 2022 LADR Workshop* (under review)

Journal Articles

• "The Possibility of Recognizing Emergency Arbitration in National Laws of Countries with Developing Commercial Arbitration: Experience from Vietnam", *Comtemporary Asia Arbitration Journal*, Vol. 14, No. 2, 2021 (with Huynh Quang Thuan)

• "Third-Party Funding in Commercial Arbitration: Lesson for Vietnam from Selective Legal Systems", *Vietnamese Journal of Legal Sciences*, Vol. 142, No. 03/2021, 2021 (with Huynh Quang Thuan)

Book Chapter

• "Greenhouse gas emissions trading--from traditional insitutions to Vietnam's FTAs", (book chapter) (2021), *Commitment to Environment and Labor in Vietnam's Strategic Trade Agreements*, Hong Duc Publisher (with Phan Hoai Nam and Le Minh Nhut)

SCHOLARLY PRESENTATIONS

- "The Possibility of Recognizing Third-Party Funding in Commercial Arbitration in National Law of Developing Countries: The Vietnamese Perspectives", 19th Asian Law Institute (ASLI) Conference, (Japan, May 2022) (virtually) (with Huynh Quang Thuan)
- "Applying Equity in Arbitration", Conference on Contemporary Issues in International Arbitration, (Vietnam, Mar. 2022) (with Do Van Dai) (hybrid)
- "Should Developing Countries Sign the Singapore Convention on Mediation? The Vietnamese Perspectives", 7th Asian International Economic Law Network (AIELN) Conference (Singapore, Dec. 2021) (virtually)
- "Building Institutions for the Recognition and Enforcement of the Results of Commercial Dispute Settlement with Foreign Elements in Vietnam: Impacts of Globalization and Integration", *International Conference "Traditions and Modernization in the Politics and Law of Russia, China and Vietnam"* (Vietnam, Nov. 2021) (with Phan Hoai Nam and Le Minh Nhut)
- "Recognition and Enforcement of Foreign Arbitral Awards: The Vietnamese Approach", *International Conference on Sustainable Diversity in Arbitration* (Japan, Nov. 2021) (with Do Van Dai) (virtually)
- "Regulations of EVFTA, CPTPP on GHG emission rights and challenges of Vietnam", International Conference "Implementation of New-Generation FTAs in Vietnam: Challenges in the fields of labour, environmental, and intellectual property", (Vietnam, Nov. 2021) (with Phan Hoai Nam and Le Minh Nhut)
- "Some Legal Issues Posed When Vietnam Accedes to the Singapore Convention on Mediation", *Ministry-level Conference "Harmonization of EU Law and the Implications for*

ASEAN in Some Aspects of Private International Law", (Vietnam, Nov. 2021) (with Le Minh Nhut) (virtually)

• Third-Party Funding: Legal Issues and Transparency in Commercial Arbitration, Conference "Promoting Arbitration in the Context of Global Economic Integration: Lessons from International Experience", (Vietnam, Dec. 2020)